
 

 

 
Older People's Partnership 
Wednesday 20 June 2012 
10.00  - 11.30 am 
Boardroom, BFVA, Amber House, Market Street, 
Bracknell 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item Description Page By Outcome 

1.  Apologies for Absence  Martin Gilman, 
Amanda Roden 

 

2.  Minutes and Action Points from 14 March 
2012 

1 - 6 Martin Gilman  

3.  Local Account  Neil Haddock  

4.  Older People's Strategy/ Consultation 7 - 8 Andy Kimber  

5.  CAB Report on Money Management 9 - 20 Rhiannon 
Stocking-Williams 

 

6.  Links to other Strategies  Martin Gilman  

 E.G. Carers, Economic Development, 
Cultural 

   

7.  Transport Consultation Update  Tim Edwards  

8.  Future Agenda Items  Martin Gilman  

9.  Members Updates  All  

10.  Future Meetings  Martin Gilman  

 Future meetings of the Older People’s 
Partnership will be held at 10am in the 
Boardroom at Amber House: 
 
Wednesday 19 September 2012 
Wednesday 12 December 2012 
Wednesday 20 March 2013 

   

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Older People's Partnership 
14 March 2012 
10.00  - 11.55 am 
Boardroom, BFVA, Amber House, Market Street, 
Bracknell 
 

 
 
Present: Chris Cowap, BFVA 

Madeline Diver, CAB 
Naoma Dobson, Bracknell Forest Council 
Martin Gilman, BFVA (Chairman) 
Peter Smith, CEO Caring for Care Homes Ltd 
 

 
In attendance: Sue Cuthbert, Bracknell Forest Council 

Amanda Roden, Bracknell Forest Council 
 

 
Apologies: Rev Michael Bentley 

Barbara Briggs, Carer's Forum 
Margaret Camp, LINKs 
Mira Haynes, Bracknell Forest Council 
Simon Hendey, Bracknell Forest Council 
Bob Pennell, Age Concern Bracknell 
Councillor Clifton Thompson 
Amanda Waters, Senior Lifelong Learning Officer 
Linda Wells, Bracknell Forest Homes 
 

 
Action Points 
 
Minute Item 

67   Minutes and Action Points from 14 December 2011 
 

 The minutes of meeting held 14 December 2011 were agreed as a correct record. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
• The new phone numbers for health and the police was still confusing 

people and had not been widely advertised. There was a pilot in the north 
of England. 

• The issue in relation to the Nepali elderly in Sandhurst had been raised 
and a grant for minority ethnic Asian elderly had been given by Adult Social 
Care at Bracknell Forest Council for Sandhurst Day Centre. There would 
be training for staff regarding, for example, dietary needs to meet health 
and safety rules. Integration for the Nepalese regarding, for example, 
language would be long term. 

• The Single Equality Scheme was going to the meeting of the Executive on 
20 March. The objectives had been reduced to 12 or 13. 

• The Sub Group for the Older People’s Partnership Strategy refresh would 
next meet in May. 

• Blue badges for disabled people were being replaced with new badges 

Agenda Item 2

1



   
 
 
 

 

when old badges needed to be renewed. The new information booklet 
issued with blue badges included places where blue badges could be 
used, for example, not on private land. In London Boroughs parking was 
particularly difficult in some areas. The new guidance regarding the issuing 
of blue badges was clear on the requirements people would need to meet. 
Further information would be sought regarding parking for volunteer 
drivers, for example, for hospital transport. 

(Action: Naoma Dobson) 
A friend could transport a blue badge holder if they were in the car and the 
badge was clearly displayed. The cost of a blue badge was now £10 for 3 
years. 

• The ‘money talks’ programme ended on Thursday. Funding was being 
sought by the Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB), but had not been secured in 
this instance.  

 

68   'Be Smart Be Safe' - Older People's Handbook 
 

 The Partnership discussed the ‘Be Smart, Be Safe’ handbook from Essex County 
Council with a view to producing a similar handbook for Bracknell Forest. 
 
It was queried whether there were any copyright issues with using the same 
format. It was reported that the handbook was produced for Essex County Council 
by a charity. It was suggested that the Partnership seek support from local 
businesses or private companies such as Saga to help towards to costs of 
producing the handbook with a mix of text and pictures.  
 
Private sheltered housing schemes would possibly be involved and the handbook 
would be generic and agency related with information regarding, for example, 
police, fire, and health agencies. 
 
It was queried what the Partnership would be allowed to do when a license had 
been received. 

(Action: Lynne Lidster) 
 

Further information on the printing costs and the number of handbooks needed 
would be sought. It was suggested that contact sheets with phone numbers on be 
kept at the back of the handbook in case they changed. There were national 
contacts in the handbook for Essex County Council, it was queried whether local 
contacts should be included also for Bracknell Forest. Logos for the handbook 
would be considered and it was suggested that no date should be added. It was 
suggested that it could be difficult to insert information unless the handbook was 
spiral bound. 
 
Help from agencies and, for example, the use of Town and Country would be 
sought but duplication should be avoided, such as multiple copies to the same 
agency. Housebound people should be targeted and a wide distribution for the 
handbook was suggested as the best option.  
 

2



69   Bracknell Forest Bus Services Consultation 
 

 Sue Cuthbert, Principle Engineer (Transport IMP), gave a briefing on the Bracknell 
Forest Bus Services Consultation. 
 
Bus services in Bracknell Forest operated via commercial or contracted services 
supported by external funding. If bus services crossed borough boundaries, they 
would be funded by several councils. Some bus services were funded by 
developers but when funding ran out if the service was not commercially viable it 
would likely cease. Every service was not necessarily stand alone and some were 
shared with other services or contracts, rather than being one bus, one driver and 
one route. 
 
There were strong links with concessionary fares and support from Bracknell 
Forest Council but cuts in the budget throughout the Council had led to services 
being reviewed. The changes implemented to the bus services in Bracknell Forest 
would have an impact on residents and public transport users in the area, and the 
bus services consultation would help to inform the decision making process 
regarding which services to withdraw or reduce. 
 
The bus services consultation questionnaire had been distributed and the 
consultation had been advertised on bus services, online, in libraries and 
community centres. Questionnaires had also been sent to the Parish and Town 
Councils in Bracknell Forest. Community transport was different to the bus 
services in the consultation. 
 
It was suggested that it would be easier to understand cuts to bus services in the 
borough if the costs to the Borough Council of keeping a particular service running 
were known. 
 
The 151 bus service withdrawal could be justified as passengers could use the 
190 service instead. The withdrawal and reduction of bus services was based on 
passenger numbers and if a service was not commercially viable it would be 
unlikely to continue. It was queried whether local businesses had been asked if 
they would like to subsidise bus services in the borough. 
 
Contracted bus services and transport links had been considered but not 
discussed in detail with bus operators as yet. It was suggested that if good bus 
services were available, such as the Green Park to Reading service, people may 
be more inclined to leave their cars at home and save money on car parking fees. 
 
The withdrawal of evening and Sunday bus services in the Binfield and Winkfield 
areas, and less frequency during the day, in particular was of concern for some 
people but the withdrawal and reduction of bus services was not definite yet. It 
was mentioned that older people in particular would like to attend events, but were 
unable to as they could travel to the event via bus services but could not travel 
home again as many bus services stopped early evening and special transport 
arrangements would need to be made. 
 
Bus services users and potential users were being considered and the possible 
impacts of bus service reduction or withdrawal. 
 
There was competition for Community Transport, for example, mini buses for 
wheelchair users such as dial-a-ride. A fair price was needed for these services 
and sometimes advance booking was needed to obtain such services. Some taxis 

3



   
 
 
 

 

had disabled access but different fastenings were needed for different types of 
wheelchairs. 
 
The bus services consultation in Bracknell Forest was due to end on 30 March 
2012.  
 

70   Older People's Partnership Conference Update 
 

 Naoma Dobson, Head of Long Term Community Support and Continuing Health 
Care, gave an update on the Older People’s Partnership Conference. 
 
There had not been a great number of people offering to donate in relation to the 
conference and there had been a couple of changes in facilitators. There had not 
been a great response from people wishing to attend the conference yet but BFVA 
had 30 people confirmed so far. 
 
Money matters and advice from the CAB would be undertaken before lunch and 
Simon Bull, Assistant Borough Solicitor, would be there. It was hoped that Simon 
could do an early slot before lunch. Naoma would let Chris Cowap know if this was 
possible. 

(Action: Naoma Dobson) 
 
There would be an ‘out and about’ session with Martin Gilman at the conference 
and a key pad for responses from the audience when asked questions. Chris 
Cowap and Lynne Lidster were working on ideas for the questions. Naoma would 
possibly liaise with Vicky Vine regarding this. The company involved would like to 
know one week in advance of the conference what the questions would be. 
 
After each speaker at the conference there would be a 20 minute discussion slot. 
It was suggested that Sue Cuthbert could attend the transport section of the 
conference and would put forward two questions for this. 

(Action: Sue Cuthbert)  
 

71   Members Updates 
 

 Naoma Dobson, Head of Long Term Community Support and Continuing Health 
Care, mentioned that the Carers’ Strategy was about to be launched. Incidents of 
support had increased by 31% in one year and people were coming back for 
support as their needs increased.  
 
Hospitals were discharging people too soon on occasion and carers were then 
required sometimes five times a day which was not sustainable long term for any 
local authority. Sometimes people were discharged from hospital and then re-
admitted the next day as they were still unwell, so agencies were then not paid as 
the client was not at home. 
 
Not much funding was received by Adult Social Care from central government so 
there would not be as much impact from funding cuts but there would still be some 
impact. There would not be a Joint Commissioning post anymore as the funding 
for this had been cut. End of life care funding in Bracknell Forest amounted to 

4



   
 
 
 

 

approximately £50,000. In relation to continuing health care, there were nursing 
home places in the NHS and funding for acute care was a problem area. 
 
Peter Smith, CEO Caring for Care Homes Ltd, was a representative on the 
Economic and Skills Development Partnership (ESDP) and would be attending the 
Older People’s Partnership meetings to consider actions arising from the 
meetings. Actions 5.1 – 5.5 of the action plan from the ESDP would be circulated 
to the Older People’s Partnership. 

(Action: Amanda Roden) 
 
Chris Cowap, BFVA, mentioned that the Faith and Belief Forum was being held 
on Wednesday 9 May 2012, 12pm – 2pm, at the Open Learning Centre in 
Bracknell and lunch would be provided. More information on this would be 
available soon. Health featured highly in relation to minority ethnic groups. 
 
Madeline Diver, CAB, updated partnership members on the financial situation 
with CAB at present. There would be a mini conference with the head office 
representative in two weeks to consider cuts in services if more funding was not 
secured. Particular contracts would be looked at and the Berkshire Community 
Foundation would pay a salary for some work to be undertaken for a couple of 
months.  
 
An application for Comic Relief funding had been put in and there were two rounds 
to this but many applications had been received by Comic Relief so they had not 
been able to go through them all. CAB were waiting to hear if they were through to 
the second stage but had a plan in case this funding was not secured. 
 
There were national initiatives in relation to the Health and Social Care Bill and all 
services provided locally would go to tender but this would not happen for April 
2012. The core funding received from Bracknell Forest Council was not enough to 
continue with current CAB services in Bracknell. The main costs to cover were for 
the core staff team, which comprised of administration staff, the Chief Executive, a 
money advice advisor, an overseer of benefits, and the CAB Manager. 
 
Madeline would forward Rhiannon’s e-mail address at CAB to Peter Smith for him 
to find out details of what the shortfall was on staff salaries. 

(Action: Madeline Diver) 
 

The rent for the premises used by CAB was minimal at present but CAB in 
Bracknell would need to find new premises by the end of the year. 
 
Martin Gilman, BFVA, mentioned that organisations such as BFVA were closing 
all across the country. National organisations were stepping in and smaller ones 
could not compete with bids for funding, for example, to Big Lottery as funding was 
sometimes given based on head count and Bracknell Forest was a small authority. 
 
The possibility of sharing the management system with Windsor and Maidenhead 
was suggested. There had been a £70 million cut to funding for the voluntary 
sector across the country. Different income streams would be considered such as 
renting out rooms and services but it was not always worth doing this when the 
administrative costs had been calculated. Peter Smith would discuss this further 
with Martin.  
 

5



72   Future Meetings 
 

 Future meetings of the Older People’s Partnership will be held at 10am in the 
Boardroom at Amber House:    
 
Wednesday 20 June 2012 
Wednesday 19 September 2012 
Wednesday 12 December 2012 
Wednesday 20 March 2013  
 

 
 
 

6



Adass National Drivers for the Bracknell Forest Older People’s Strategy 2012 
 
Existing Bracknell Strategy Priority 1: Housing and the Home 
2012 Adass Drivers:  
A range of different types of housing which allows people to remain at home as long as they wish. 
1. Equality and Human Rights Commission34 which found that “for too many this care delivered behind closed doors 
is not supporting the dignity, autonomy and family life which their human rights should guarantee”. 
2. Without effective community-based provision, demand for acute and substitute care will continue to rise. 
3. It is estimated that money spent on help at home saves the NHS money2 
4. The role of the authority in using good quality intelligence and a sound evidence base, facilitating the care home 
and home care markets, intervening where necessary and ensuring that older people have access to reliable, good 
quality care in their local area will be more important than ever. 
 
Existing Bracknell Priority 2: Neigbourhood 
2012 Adass Drivers:  
Effective prevention in supportive communities which promote good health, 
wellbeing and involvement. 
1. Assumptions about the relationship between older people and their communities and about their relationship with 
the state, particularly health, wellbeing and social care, need to be redefined. 
2. There are many stereotypes we all continue to carry about old age that need to be challenged, and a more positive 
approach to active citizenship for older people to be developed. 
3. Older people do not want and do not need to spend so much time in hospital. Investing in better quality community 
based health, care and wellbeing services for older people is the only cost effective way in which we can reverse the 
recent findings concerning poor quality care and inadequate health services across the country. 
4. Create locally based ring-fenced innovation funds designed to deliver a shift from acute care in hospitals, nursing 
and residential care and into community based provision. This will send very clear signals about where it expects care 
for older people to be focused in the future, 
5. Encourage Clinical Commissioning Groups to invest more in community based health and social care, including 
support for carers, and reduce the use of acute provision for older people, 
6. Put more resources into research and dissemination of best practice in delivering preventative services and in 
considering the role which citizens can play to support vulnerable people in our communities. 
 
Existing Bracknell Priority 3. Social Activities and Networks 
2012 Adass Drivers:  
Good quality information and advice and straightforward access to health, care and support 
1. The capacity of technology to play a part in service delivery and have an impact on the health, care and wellbeing 
of older people is yet to be fully exploited. Assistive technology, communications and social networking36 need to be 
recognised as destined to influence the nature of demand and service delivery significantly in future
 
Existing Bracknell Priority 4. Getting Out and About 
2012 Adass drivers: 
No clear Adass drivers for this area: Local Consultation Event flagged up transport needs re. accessing 
exercise facilities.  
 
Existing Bracknell Priority 5. Income 
2012 Adass Drivers 
Real choice and control over services which are fairly priced and affordable. 
Services which are effective, efficient and accessible when and where needed. 
1. Alzheimer’s Society presents evidence27 that care for many older people with dementia needs a more radical 
response from the market28. They highlight a number of issues including: ● “A personal budgets system that has not 
yet adapted to the needs of people with dementia and their carers, and is overly complex and burdensome. ● “Local 
markets that that are not yet fully developed to deliver a range of different types of dementia services” 
2. Whilst people are generally very positive about the impact of personal budgets on their lives14, older adults report 
less satisfaction than other groups. More older people receive adult social care services than other age groups, but 
the numbers in receipt of personal budgets or direct payments are small. It is not certain that current arrangements 
are flexible enough to make this a reality for older people. 
3. The principles of choice, control and personalisation are sound, but if the vision is to succeed the Government 
needs to work with ADASS and its partners to: 
● Review the implementation of personal budgets and direct payments with older people and identify how they can be 
overhauled to work more effectively in the future. ● Review the range of approaches which have been developed to 

Agenda Item 4

7



support quality assurance and safeguarding of self-directed support services, and recommend a minimum set of 
standards. ● Improve the quality and availability of information about services available to older people to help them 
make well informed choices about services. 
 
Existing Bracknell Priority 6. Information, Access and Participation in Services 
2012 Adass Drivers 
Community health and care services working together to aid recovery and provide ongoing support to reduce 
the need for acute care. 
1. We all have to recognise the limited resources of the state, and communities will 
increasingly need to look at what they can offer to promote wellbeing locally. 
2. Local authorities need to do more to gear their full range of services, beyond social care, to supporting older people 
to live active lives in their community and thus avoid the need for substitute or acute care. 
3. The assumption that older people are by and large passive recipients of services defined and controlled by 
professionals is no longer relevant (if it ever was). 
4. There is a profoundly important market facilitation role needed from local authorities and their partners. 
 
Existing Bracknell Priority 7. Health and Wellbeing 
2012 Adass Drivers 
Safe, good quality services from reliable and skilled people. 
1. In health care, CQC found in 2011 that care in hospital for older people was often very poor, with a fifth of 100 
hospitals inspected failing to meet minimum standards for dignity or nutrition35. 
2. There has been widespread acceptance of the vision of shifting the balance of services from acute care and the 
frailest elderly to promoting the wellbeing of all older people and reducing demand for these services. 
3. There is a common agreement about the need to broaden the approach to prevention, 
4. An increase in the number of older people living alone12 
5. Better recognition and support for carers, particularly for older carers. 
 
Summary 
This is an issue of better joined up commissioning and of practical arrangements in place at the point of delivery.  
● Identify and promote examples of emerging good integrated practice across health and social care. 
● Examine how in practice barriers to commissioning integrated services can be further broken down, particularly in 
the area of continuing health care and how much simpler means can be developed to create simple fiscal integration 
so that the cost of health and care provision to an individual can be spent in alternative ways. 
● Promote more effective joint commissioning of integrated care by local authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups 
and Health and Wellbeing Boards, including better engagement with and a stronger voice for older people 
themselves. 
● Ensure that training across health and social care proceeds on an integrated pathway that breaks down 
professional restrictive practice and develops a multi-skilled workforce that can deliver integrated health, care and 
housing services. 
 
Explore how commissioners at national and local levels can pay for health and social care using measures of the 
outcomes achieved, rather than focusing on simply the cost of procedures and activity. 
 
 
Andy Kimber 
Commissioning Officer 
Bracknell Forest Council 
May 2012  
 

8



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Consultation on money management needs 
of Bracknell people over 65 

 
 

 
January 2012 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bracknell & District 

 

Agenda Item 5

9



 1 

 
Contents  

 
 
Introduction and background ………………………………………………….      2 
 
Key Findings…………………………………………………………………….       3 
 
Report 
 
Barriers experienced by people over 65………………………….………….       4 
 
Reducing the barriers…………………….…………………………………….      6 
 
What could be done to improve the situation?  ................…………………       7 
 
Conclusion ….…………………………………………………………………..       9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 2 

 
Introduction and Background 
 
Bracknell & District Citizens Advice Bureau conducted a consultation into 
money management for the over 65’s in January 2012. This was undertaken 
against the backdrop of the bureau’s local experience together with concerns 
highlighted in national reports and the media about the growing impact of 
poverty on older people. In January 2012 Age UK reported that inflation for 
many pensioners had reached 20% since 2008 compared with the UK 
average of 13.39%. Bracknell Forest Council’s older people’s strategy review 
specifically highlighted risks of fuel poverty for people 65+. 
 
As a 1960’s New Town, Bracknell now has a wave of people reaching 65, 
most of whose families have moved elsewhere. Living in an area of relative 
affluence exacerbates the experience of poverty with goods and services 
often above national averages.  Bracknell contains severe pockets of 
deprivation, and a survey by Experian (2008) found it had the 9th highest level 
of debts anywhere in the UK and Confused.com (2009) found the 3rd highest 
level of credit card debt. 
 
Bracknell CAB had seen an increase to over 10,000 money issues a year and 
evidence from older clients demonstrated that more needed to be done. The 
bureau had also reached 3500 people in the last 9 years through MoneyTalks, 
a specialist financial capability service. 
 
The consultation sought to involve people over 65 and organisations that 
represent them in identifying what older people need to: 
 
- build their knowledge and skills to manage their money more 

effectively,  
- ensure access to good, independent financial advice,  
- guard against financial scams and abuse, 
- cope better with cold homes, 
- manage the extreme rising fuel and food prices.  

 
We also wanted to find the most effective ways of developing partnerships 
with financial institutions to recognise and respond better to the needs of older 
people, and to identify which communities we should be prioritising – i.e. who 
are the most disadvantaged and marginalized groups in the 65+ population 
locally? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 3 

 
Key Findings 
 
The consultation found that there are a number of barriers to the over 65s 
managing their money better in the Bracknell Forest area.  
• Many are reluctant to seek advice and are not always aware of their 

rights in accessing help or benefits.  
• They can become isolated within the community due to lack of mobility, 

mental capacity and absence of family and friends.  
• Bracknell Forest has several excluded pensioner communities and 

those living in mobile home parks and the growing Nepalese 
community were both brought to the consultation’s attention.  

• Pensioners expressed anxiety about their bewilderment concerning 
financial products and also their perceived vulnerability to scams. 

 
 
The consultation revealed some the services required to respond to these 
needs:  
• The Citizens Advice Bureau was seen as a trusted agency in the 

community and easy ways for the over 65’s to access the Bureau 
would be welcomed.  

• Benefits ‘take up’ campaigns were popular together with face to face 
advice and training.  

• Publicity about fuel poverty schemes and possible scams were also felt 
to be useful.  

• Independent financial advice was put forward by all groups as 
necessary. Over 65’s are faced with investment and savings choices, 
downsizing their properties and trying to balance their budgets in 
changing times.  

• A holistic approach for people over 65 to manage their money better 
was put forward as a number of factors where found to contribute to 
financial wellbeing.  

 
Finally, the consultation then looked at how best to deliver these services.  
Here, partnership working was key and prospective partnerships were 
identified. Talks for groups of people and outreach and home visits for those 
who are more isolated were suggested. There are also a number of over 65’s 
with a wealth of experience who could mentor others. Some participants who 
were over 65 were active and wanted to help the community. 
 

  

12



 4 

 
Report  
 
The consultation took place in January 2012 through a series of meetings with 
representatives of the Bracknell Forest Council Adult Social Care Team and a 
group of experienced money advisers based at Bracknell Citizens Advice 
Bureau. Two lunch events were held involving people over 65 and 
organisations that represent them.  Posters were displayed advertising the 
opportunity and a local caravan park was leafleted the weekend before. 
Several people who could not take part in these events contacted the bureau 
via telephone and email. 
 
 
Barriers experienced by people over 65 
 
Participants at the lunch events agreed that people over 65 face a number of 
barriers to improving their situation.  
 
Pride and/or shame in asking for advice, especially where finances are 
concerned. Older People might also not be aware of their rights and lack of 
money and reluctance to means testing also plays a part. Too much 
income and/or savings to qualify for help can also present a different 
problem. Many over 65’s are property rich and income poor. 
 
Isolation from the wider community is also a concern due to lack of 
mobility, reduced mental capacity and reduced family and friends. The 
surrounding community may not have the capacity to assist. Some people 
over 65 have anxiety about trusting advice and there may be a barrier to 
their understanding i.e. language, education or ageing mental capacity. 
 
These findings were reiterated elsewhere.  
 
Both the bureau advisers and Bracknell Forest Council participants expressed 
concern at the increase in the over 65’s accessing payday loans to make 
ends meet. They felt that many of this group experience shame concerning 
debt, can lack knowledge about financial matters and their pride can conflict 
with claiming benefits. Bracknell Forest Council participants also flagged up 
bad value equity release schemes. They felt that the large number of 
pensioners living in mobile homes were often ill-equipped for the winter. 
Further research showed that there at least 935 mobile homes with an 
estimated 1,480 residents in the Bracknell Forest area.   
 
The Somali and Nepali communities were mentioned along with those 
returning from Spain and living in poverty, having failed to sell their property 
there. Bracknell’s Community Cohesion Group recently identified problems for 
older Nepali people in accessing advice, mirroring evidence from a 2011 
outreach project our Bureau ran with the Nepalese community and local PCT. 
When the views of the over 65’s in the Look–in Café were articulated, several 
themes emerged. 
 
 

13



 5 

Uncertainty about where to invest money 
Several people spoke about having some savings but uncertainty about 
where to invest it. There was confusion about where to receive reliable 
financial advice and having to pay for the service. People were unsure of the 
safety of investments and which institutions to trust. Being able to receive 
free, independent advice on investments was very appealing. 
 
Thinking about downsizing but put off by all the bureaucracy etc 
People expressed an interest in downsizing their properties but were worried 
about the bureaucracy involved. It was suggested that an independent 
financial advisor would be useful to point out the true cost of moving and give 
advice about where to invest capital. It was felt that there were a lot of people 
locally in similar situations. 
 
Limited market in financial products for the elderly 
Concern was expressed about the perceived limited availability of financial 
products for the elderly. This was particularly highlighted in the area of travel 
insurance. 
 
Not knowing where to access help 
Many people did not know where to turn for support managing money. It was 
felt that as Bracknell is perceived as being relatively affluent, there are not as 
many projects/schemes/people to help as might be found in other parts of the 
country. Concerns were raised about the over 65s who are reluctant to claim 
the support that they were entitled to. Help with filing in forms was also was 
also seen as desirable. 
 
Use of jargon  
Several people expressed confusion concerning letters that they had received 
that used lots of financial terms. They had become increasingly distressed 
when this was coupled with threats of prosecution.  
 

Digital exclusion 
Although some people felt confident in accessing information over the 
internet, others felt that a service was needed for those people not computer 
literate in order to be able to access the information. It was also suggested 
that improving access to computers would be a good idea. 
 
Scams 
Several people expressed concern over adverts offering loans. They felt the 
terms and conditions were not straightforward and were unsure if they were 
lawful. The increased use of email and text messaging over PPI and credit 
cards also worried people as these seem random and possibly a scam. 
 
Rising heating costs 
The cost of fuel troubled many and people were worried about how they will 
manage with further price rises. They gave instances of how they manage 
now and were only using their heating sparingly. This was particularly 
instanced by a resident in a mobile home. 
 
 
 
 

14



 6 

Reducing the barriers 
 
Participants at the lunch events felt that:  
 
Regular advice sessions and publicity on their benefits entitlements 
would help. There should be easy access to this i.e. outreach, home visits and 
visits to sheltered housing. They felt that help could be given by the local 
CAB, other community agencies, neighbours and friends. Many over 65’s 
would welcome training in money management and sign posting to good 
financial advice. Bracknell Forest Council representatives felt that there is a 
need to describe the project sensitively to older people. 
 
There are a number people over 65 with a wealth of experience whom 
could mentor others. Here, training and CAB mentoring would be useful.  
Case studies were used to explore a number of issues including: people living 
in family sized homes or mobile homes who cannot afford heating; people 
who are isolated due to lack of mobility, friends and family or waning mental 
capacity; people worried about using a bank or financial products that seem 
too complicated. The group concluded that there are over 65’s who are active, 
have experience and want to help the community. 
 
Local poverty-reduction schemes need more capacity.  Bracknell Forest 
Council has a Fuel Poverty Scheme and the local CAB could add additional 
capacity to existing activity; promotion or filling the gaps.  
 
Bracknell’s Older People’s Partnership offers two-way access (to money 
advice services)  to people over 65, through organisations such as Age 
Concern Bracknell, U3A, Bracknell Forest Older People’s Forum, Bracknell 
Forest Homes residents, Easthampstead and Warfield residents groups, 
Sheltered Schemes Tenants Association, AAA – Ascot and Sandhurst Day 
centre. 
  
Bracknell Forest Council’s ‘The 75’s Service’ receives referrals from GPs 
of everyone who has had a ’75 health check’. It is a non-means tested, low 
level wellbeing assessment which includes a property assessment (slips, trips 
and falls etc) capacity to prepare meals and take care of day-to-day living.  
There was an offer from Bracknell Forest Council participants to piggyback 
this service and offer CAB money advice through referrals from this service. 
  
Working with partners was also instanced when we consulted other Citizens 
Advice Bureaux after the lunch event. A project in Leicester found that 
working with partners who already run forums/groups is a good way to 
progress. They recruited energy champions, giving them training and then 
getting them (as trusted friend in their local communities) to go along to give 
help to residents in a variety of ways. When delivering sessions to a group 
they found it was good to get the group leader to understand so that they can 
continue the drip of information after you have left. 
 
 
 

15



 7 

Participants at the lunch event felt that the Citizens Advice Bureau was a 
trusted advice agency in the community. Many over 65’s do not claim pension 
credit and council tax benefit. They felt that easy ways to contact CAB i.e. 
through email, phone, outreach and home visits would be welcome. Some 
over 65’s could downsize their accommodation but would need support to 
make this sort of decision. 
 
Information on such areas as reducing heating bills would be welcome. The 
group cited ideas on improving people’s financial position such as renting a 
room, good financial advice, benefits advice, grants and better returns on 
savings. Social services and GPs could refer clients for such a service. 
Information to clients concerning police security checks, fire service smoke 
alarms would be useful. Some over 65’s could set up their own support 
groups with literature etc supplied by the local CAB. Several running themes 
emerged :- 
 
• Benefits ‘take up’ campaigns 
• Independent financial advice 
• Targeting disadvantaged groups 
• Combating scams 

 
Benefits ‘take up’ campaigns featured as a recurrent theme. The bureau 
advisers felt that this should emphasise that clients have ‘paid their dues’ and  
focus on Attendance Allowance, Pension credit and Council Tax Benefit. Face 
to face advice was seen as preferable to internet or telephone. Although a 
dedicated telephone line for over 65’s was also suggested. Home visits were 
seen as a good idea and this could be extended to Fuel Poverty Scheme take 
up. Bureau advisers wanted inclusion of information about agencies that can 
help together with publicity surrounding help for fuel poverty e.g. insulation 
etc. Referrals from banks and energy companies could be a way forward. 
 
Independent financial advice was endorsed by the bureau advisers who felt 
that it would be helpful along with self funding advice for care homes. 
Bracknell Forest Council representatives also instanced awareness and 
information on Power of Attorney and wills. They questioned if a discount 
scheme could be negotiated with local law firms. The research in the Look In 
Café showed that free independent advice on investments was very 
appealing. Advice when considering downsizing was also suggested. The 
bureau advisers felt that basic budgeting advice was needed and sessions 
through Bracknell Forest Voluntary Action and the Open Learning Centre 
were also put forward. A CAB caravan placed in supermarket car parks 
proved a popular idea. 
 
Targeting disadvantaged groups in Bracknell Forest were instanced at our 
meeting with the council. They were concerned about mobile home insulation 
and protection of those tenants from the cold. Email feed back to the bureau 
also advised that this group could use legal advice surrounding rental of 
pitches. There is a large group of people over 65 living in mobile homes in the 
area and they would welcome help with benefits and financial planning. 
Outreach work with the growing number of over 65s in the Nepalese 
community would be welcome. 
 

16



 8 

Combating scams. Many of the organisations and individuals involved in the 
events felt they were vulnerable to scams and that sessions raising 
awareness with people over 65 would be helpful preventative activity. The 
interviews in the Look-In café particularly raised the feeling of vulnerability 
among people over 65 to mis-selling of financial products and scams. 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 9 

 
Conclusion 
 
The report painted a picture of Bracknell people over 65 living in challenging 
times. Nationally, pensioners are experiencing a squeeze on living standards 
due to inflation and low interest rates on savings. Living in an area of relative 
affluence exacerbates the experience of poverty with goods and services 
often above national averages.  Bracknell contains severe pockets of 
deprivation, and the communities residing in mobile home parks and the 
Nepalese community were noted especially.  The town has experienced a 
wave of people reaching 65 due to Bracknell’s new town status over the last 
60 years. This, together with the large amounts of recorded debt in the town, 
has led to increased demand for help for money management amongst the 
over 65 age group. 
 
Building knowledge and skills to manage money was a recurring theme. 
The over 65s in Bracknell find themselves in a changing world and there is an 
acknowledged reluctance by older people to ask advice concerning their 
finances. They might not be aware of their rights and reluctant to access 
means tested benefits. People over 65 can feel isolated in the community due 
to their lack of mobility and/or family and friends. 
 
Good independent financial advice was also a major theme. People over 
65 expressed anxiety in trusting various forms of financial advice. Financial 
products have become more complicated and many are bewildered by the 
complexity. The current financial situation means that they need to make the 
most of their money but lack the skills and support to do this.  
 
Many felt they needed face to face support when the internet was 
instanced as a source of advice. People were on their guard concerning 
financial scams but were unsure about whether to respond to unsolicited texts 
or emails. 
 
Citizens Advice Bureau could add additional capacity and ‘fill in the 
gaps’. Bracknell Forest Council provides initiatives concerning fuel poverty, 
but more could be done to encourage take up. The over 65s were found to 
be financially pinched by the extreme rise in fuel and food prices. Many 
expressed worries for the future and their ability to cope. 
 
Partnership working was seen as key to reaching many of the over 65s in 
the Bracknell Forest area. Mentors or champions could be recruited from 
this group, as many have a wealth of experience and inclination to become 
involved. Here after training they could disseminate financial capability to the 
wider community of over 65s. 
 
Regular advice sessions and publicity on benefit entitlements were seen 
as useful, with outreach and home visits for the most ‘hard to reach’. 
Many people did not know where to access for support in managing their 
money. The tried and tested MoneyTalks approach for delivering workshops 
where people meet also proved popular. The Citizens Advice Bureau was 
seen as a trusted advice agency in the community. 
  
 

18



 10 

 
 
 
 
 
Bracknell & District Citizens Advice Bureau is an operating name of  
Bracknell Citizens Advice Limited 
40-42 The Broadway 
Bracknell 
Berks RG12 1AG 
 
Charity registration number:            1065672 
Company limited by guarantee 
Registered number:                        3433043 (England and Wales)   
 
Tel:      Advice line 0844 4994107 
            Admin line 01344 428107 
 
Fax:      01344 867171 
 
Email:   moneytalks@bracknellcab.org.uk 
 
Web:    www.bracknellcab.org.uk 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes and Action Points from 14 March 2012
	4 Older People's Strategy/ Consultation
	5 CAB Report on Money Management

